Public Document Pack

Communities, Equality and Local Government
Committee

Meeting Venue: Cynulliad

Committee Room 2 - Senedd Cenedlaethol
Cymru

Meeting date: National

5 June 2013 Assembly for
Wales

Meeting time: F’
09:00 /

For further information please contact:

Policy: Marc Wyn Jones
Committee Clerk

029 2089 8505 / 029 2089 8600
CELG.committee@wales.gov.uk

Agenda

Private Pre-meeting - 09.00 - 09.15 - Private Paper 1

1 Introductions, apologies and substitutions (09.15)

2 Inquiry into the future of equality and human rights in Wales -

evidence session 4 (09.15 - 09.55) (Pages 6 - 10)
Stonewall Cymru
CELG(4)-17-13 - Paper 2

Andrew White, Director
Dean Lloyd, Workplace Officer

3 Inquiry into the future of equality and human rights in Wales -
evidence session 5 (09.55 - 10.35) (Pages 11 - 16)

Tai Pawb

CELG(4)-17-13 - Paper 3

Mair Thomas, Equality and Diversity Officer
Emma Reeves, Equality and Diversity Officer



Break - 10.35 - 10.45

4 Inquiry into the future of equality and human rights in Wales -
evidence session 6 (10.45 - 11.25) (Pages 17 - 21)

Disability Wales
CELG(4)-17-13 - Paper 4

Rhian Davies, Chief Executive
Miranda French, Policy and Public Affairs Manager

5 Inquiry into the future of equality and human rights in Wales
(Pages 22 - 31)

The NHS Centre for Equality and Human Rights

CELG(4)-17-13 - Paper 5

Unable to attend

6 Papers to Note

Correspondence from the Welsh Heads of Environmental Health, Housing
Technical Panel following the meeting on 27 February (Page 32)
CELG(4)-17-13 - Paper (to note) 6

Letter from Powys County Council (Pages 33 - 34)
CELG(4)-17-13 - Paper (to note) 7

Correspondence from the Minister for Local Government and Government
Business following the meeting on 1 May (Pages 35 - 44)
CELG(4)-17-13 - Paper (to note) 8



Agenda Annex

Document is Restricted

Page 1



Agenda Item 2

Paper 2
Communities, Equality and Local Government Committee

Inquiry into : The future of equality and human rights in Wales

Response from : Stonewall Cymru

Introduction

1.  Weare pleased to respond to the Committee’s call for evidence for its inquiry into
the future of equality and human rights in Wales.

2. Stonewall Cymru is the leading organisation campaigning and lobbying for lesbian,
gay and bisexual equality in Wales. We have been eager to improve the evidence
base for the real lived experience of our stakeholders and below we wish to draw
the committee’s attention to some of the stark reminders of how life is for LGB
people in Wales today. Whilst there has undoubtedly been progress, there
remains much work to be done.

3. In November 2012 Stonewall Cymru published The School Report 2012. This
survey of more than 1,600 young LGB people in Britain shows some encouraging
results. Levels of homophobic bullying have fallen by 10% since 2007 and the
number of schools saying that homophobic bullying is wrong has more than
doubled. This research also provides clear evidence that in those schools that are
taking simple steps to tackle homophobia, pupils are less likely to have been
bullied and much more likely to feel happy and welcome in their schools. The
study shows that there is still much more to be done. More than half of lesbian,
gay and bisexual young people in Britain still experience homophobic bullying and
its damaging impact is just as pronounced. Two in five gay pupils who experience
bullying attempt or think about taking their own life as a direct consequence.
Three in five bullied gay young people say that it is affecting their studies and
seven in ten of all lesbian, gay and bisexual pupils admit to skipping school at
some point. Only one in four gay pupils say a teacher has spoken with them about
how homophobic bullying is wrong.

4, In December 2012 in partnership with Sport Wales we published, Lesbian, Gay
and Bisexual People in Sport: Understanding LGB sports participation in Wales.
This report found that 75% of LGB survey respondents have heard homophobic
banter in sport. 49% of LGB individuals said they had experienced verbal abuse
due to their sexual orientation - 12% have experienced physical abuse 33% of LGB
people have experienced exclusion from sport because of their sexual orientation

Page 6



72% of LGB people would be more likely to participate in a club if it was marketed
as LGB-friendly.

5.  InlJanuary 2013 Stonewall Cymru published Living Together: Welsh attitudes to
lesbian, gay and bisexual people. This was the first study of its kind to ask people
in Wales their views on gay equality and was conducted by YouGov among over
1,000 adults living in Wales.

6.  This polling shows the scale of the challenge we continue to face. Half of all
people acknowledge that prejudice still exists against gay people, 114,000 people
have witnessed homophobic bullying at work and three in five young people have
witnessed homophobic bullying in their own school. They are clear that this
should be tackled.

7. Later this year we will be conducting further research into the lived experience of
LGB people in Wales, benchmarking progress since our first All Wales Lesbian,
Gay and Bisexual Survey report was published in 2003.

How well are the specific public sector equality duties functioning in Wales?

8. The general equality duty, which covers sexual orientation for the first time, has
only been in force for two years. We think it is too soon for there to be sufficient
evidence of how the general duty or the specific duties are working in practice.
While many public sector organisations have already been working for some
years to promote equality for lesbian, gay and bisexual staff and service users,
others are still in the process of adapting to their new statutory obligations.

9. We campaigned for a single equality duty for a number of years. We continue to
believe that a single equality duty, focused on practical outcomes, can
potentially have a transformative effect on lesbian, gay and bisexual people's
lives in areas where they have often faced unfair treatment.

10. Upon publication of the draft public sector equality duties (Wales) Stonewall
Cymru campaigned for the inclusion of schools and school governors within the
duties and for the inclusion of sexual orientation in the duty to monitor
(originally excluded).

11. Our evidence was based on a series of Have Your Say events around Wales in
which we spoke with more than 300 lesbian, gay and bisexual people, service
providers, and representatives of third sector organisations.

12. Our workplace intervention ‘Diversity Champions’ now works with the employers
of more than a quarter of the Welsh workforce. Many of our members, though
not subject to the Wales Public Sector Duties have elected to work in ways which
are entirely compatible with the duties.

Page 7



13. Through our work with public sector organisations across Wales we know that
many have found the duty helpful in introducing or improving policies, practices
and procedures in order to improve outcomes for lesbian, gay and bisexual
people. Some even began to implement this work in anticipation of the duty
coming into force.

14. At the same time the duty has enabled lesbian, gay and bisexual people for the
first time to find out what public services in their local area are doing to improve
services for lesbian, gay and bisexual people. Organisations such as Stonewall
Cymru have also been able to hold public bodies to account for their
performance in complying with the duty.

15. Many of our members operate proactively in the field of sexual orientation. We
publish an annual UK-wide Workplace Equality Index benchmarking progress for
employers in the field of sexual orientation equality in the workplace.

16. Submissions to the Workplace Equality Index are assessed across eight areas of
good practice, many of which would be familiar in terms of the Wales specific
duties. These are:

e employee policy

employee engagement

staff training and development

monitoring

supplier policy

LGB community engagement

the ‘pink plateau’

additional evidence and staff feedback.

17. Employers submit written responses and supporting evidence. This is
supplemented with evidence submitted by employers. In 2013, more than 8,900
individual lesbian, gay and bisexual employees of Index entrants completed the
survey.

18. In 2013 11 of the Top 100 UK Employers were Welsh employers (9 of these are
public sector employers though not all are currently subject to the Wales specific
duties).

The Equality and Human Rights Commission in Wales

19. Stonewall Cymru have enjoyed a productive relationship with the Commission in
Wales since its inception in 2007.

20. With an increasingly divergent equality framework in the UK it is entirely
appropriate that the Committee should examine the Commission’s role in Wales.

Page 8



21. In the absence of a specific proposal on the future devolution of equality to
Wales it would be inappropriate at this stage for Stonewall Cymru to make
specific recommendations as to the future role or function of the EHRC in Wales.

The link between poverty and equality and the socio-economic duty in Wales

22. The Equality and Human Rights Commission in Wales has produced some very
useful evidence on the link between equality and poverty, particularly with
regard to race, special educational needs, and socio economic status.

23. Stonewall Cymru have produced evidence on the experience of homophobic
bullying in Wales, most recently in The School Report 2012. \We have also
produced research into the poor mental health experience of LGB people, and
the experience of older LGB people.

24. In terms of sexual orientation there is a lack of evidence on the long-term socio-
economic effects of homophobic bullying at school and at work, homophobic
hate crime in the community, or how poor early experiences impact on career
progression, economic potential, and the development of skills and leadership
amongst Wales’ estimated 184,000 lesbian, gay and bisexual people.

25. In considering the socio economic duty we believe that further research is
needed into the issue of possible disproportionate net migration from Wales
amongst lesbian, gay and bisexual people.

26.1n 2009 the EHRC funded our colleagues in Scotland to research this issue there,
the findings showed that three quarters of lesbian, gay, bisexual and transgender
people living in rural areas felt they had to leave their hometown before they
could come out. If the same were true in Wales rural areas risk losing talented
people to more urban areas and Wales would risk losing talented LGB people to
cities such as Bristol, Manchester, Liverpool, and London.

Accountability for equality and human rights legislation in Wales

27. We welcome the UK Government’s commitment to working with Welsh
Government to agree an approach which allows Wales to commence with the
duty for Welsh bodies.

28. Recent proposals to change the Equality Act at Westminster do shine light on the
divergence of policy, but also raise issues of a more fundamental nature on what
may be a quirk of the devolution settlement itself. Part of an Act, in this case the
Equality Act 2010 is devolved, and Welsh law has since been implemented.
However if Westminster were to repeal the general duty, the Welsh Specific
Duties would also fall, by an act of the Westminster parliament not by measures
taken by the National Assembly for Wales.

Page 9



29. We do not take a specific position for or against further devolution of equality to
Wales. We would be concerned if measures passed in Wales were effectively
repealed without reference to the legislature that had passed them. We are
hopeful that dialogue between both governments can reach a practicable and
appropriate solution.

30. Stonewall Cymru are committed to working with Welsh Government and the
National Assembly to continue to find the best solutions for lesbian, gay and
bisexual people.

We welcome the opportunity to discuss this paper with you in due course.

Andrew White

Director,
Stonewall Cymru

Page 10



Agenda Iltem 3

Paper 3
Communities, Equality and Local Government Committee

Inquiry into : The future of equality and human rights in Wales
Response from : Tai Pawb

For further information about this paper please contact: Emma Reeves-M°All,
Equality and Diversity Officer, emma@taipawb.org

Who we are

Tai Pawb (housing for all) is a registered charity and a company limited by
guarantee. The organisation’s mission is, “To promote equality and social justice in
housing in Wales”. It operates a membership system which is open to local
authorities, registered social landlords, third (voluntary) sector organisations, other
housing interests and individuals.

What we do

Tai Pawb works closely with the Welsh Assembly Government and other key
partners on national housing strategies and key working groups, to ensure that
equality is an inherent consideration in national strategic development and
implementation. The organisation also provides practical advice and assistance to
its members on a range of equality and diversity issues in housing and related
services.

Tai Pawb’s vision is to be:

The primary driver in the promotion of equality and diversity in housing, leading to
the reduction of prejudice and disadvantage, as well as changing lives for the better.

A valued partner who supports housing providers and services to recognise, respect
and respond appropriately to the diversity of housing needs and characteristics of
people living in Wales, including those who are vulnerable and marginalised.

For further information visit: www.taipawb.org

Charity registration no. 1110078
Company No. 5282554

How well the specific public sector equality duties are functioning in Wales

1. Tai Pawb works with organisations from across the social housing sector in Wales. As a
membership organisation we have members who are:

Page 11

Page 1



a. Local authorities - (housing departments). Local Authorities have a clear statutory
obligation in relation to the general public sector equality duty and as listed bodies
in Wales, the specific equality duties for Wales.

b. Housing Associations — Housing Associations are not listed under the specific
equality duties for Wales (however there is scope within the legislation for them to
be added to the list) but are viewed as having obligations under the general public
sector equality duty in relation to their functions of a public nature (e.g.
management, allocations and termination of tenancies) due in part to the legacy of
the Weaver V London & Housing Quadrant Trust case. For Housing Associations who
have core functions that are predominantly of a public nature the delineation
between the statutory obligation for listed bodies and those who provide a public
function but are not a listed public body causes confusion in the sector

Additional confusion is caused through the existence of two sets of duties (public sector equality
duty and specific equality duty) particularly when there is differentiation between the bodies
and organisations covered by the duties. For example housing associations and other bodies
and organisations which are not listed do not have to comply with the specific public sector
equality duties, and as a result they often do not fully understand the requirements placed on
those who do. This can make co-production difficult. On the other hand, where housing
associations understand specific equality duties placed on local authorities, they choose to, at
least partly, comply with those (despite lack of legal requirement to do so) as they view such
compliance as best practice (and the best way to comply with general duties). Tai Pawb sees this
as a positive contribution that the specific equality duties have made to the housing sector in
Wales. This is most clearly seen in relation to Equality Impact Assessments on Common
Allocation policies, where local authorities will be working in partnership with housing
associations operating in the area. A statutory code of practice in relation to equality in housing
should be published to help listed and non-listed housing bodies understand their duties.

It would be beneficial for the legislation to clearly define functions of a public nature and the
production of a statutory code of practice in relation to equality in housing with clear examples
of what constitutes a function of a public nature would also be beneficial and help alleviate
current confusion.

The current trend towards the introduction of more private finance being utilised be Housing
Associations may mean there is further blurring and confusion with relation to ‘passing on’
duties due to organisations utilising public funds. As Housing Associations draw in a
considerable amount of private finance it is likely they would be reticent to agree to any changes
to their obligations on this basis. However; Tai Pawb feels that there is a strong case with
relation to the fact that Housing Associations perform a public function and it is with this in mind
we would support a statutory code of guidance as outlined above.

Page2

Page 12



Equality Impact Assessments (ElAs)

5.

10.

11.

12.

Tai Pawb views assessment of impact on various groups as a crucial element of the Public Sector
Equality Duty and the promotion and advice on Equality Impact Assessments is a core element of
our strategy. Tai Pawb advises Local Authorities and Housing Associations on Equality Impact
Assessments in relation to their housing policies, procedures and practices when such assistance
is required.

In general, we see the requirement to assess impact as having made a positive contribution to
the promotion of equality in housing in Wales and the removal of this specific duty would have a
detrimental impact on equal outcomes for people in Wales. Although Housing Associations do
not have the duty to assess impact, some of them choose to do so as a matter of good practice
and a good way to ensure compliance with the general duty.

In our experience, in organisations where the impact was assessed in a meaningful way with
clear commitment from senior management, senior ownership and training for staff, these led
to positive outcomes for organisations. In some cases policies were changed or amended, in
others the Equality Impact Assessment led to greater awareness of equality issues amongst staff
responsible for given policy or service — we must not forget about this important awareness
raising element.

In our view, there is more need for senior commitment and ownership of the Equality Impact
Assessment process in organisations, which is linked to the need for greater mainstreaming of
this process, embedding it within organisational planning, analysis, implementation and
evaluation processes. Too often the process is “detached” from the above cycle and seen as
“additional”. This is reflected by e.g. the makeup of the teams carrying out an Equality Impact
Assessment at times with lack of appropriate senior and frontline representation. Too often is
the process carried out by one or two people with responsibility for “equalities” or other team
members with little awareness of the process. Some organisations still choose to use
consultants to carry out the whole Equality Impact Assessment, which in our view further

detaches the process from organisational ownership.

There is little or no public accountability at cabinet or board level (as appropriate) within the
public sector as an internal auditing and monitoring process to ensure that Equality Impact
Assessments have been completed in an adequate manner.

Where housing associations choose to carry out Equality Impact Assessments they often fail to
consult and engage with people (a specific duty for local authorities) although local authorities
are sometimes reluctant to do this as well.

There remains a fundamental misunderstanding about the use of evidence within the Equality
Impact Assessment and there is an inadequate review system. This is not helped as there is no
routine monitoring regarding the standard of Equality Impact Assessments neither is there any
meaningful consequence if either Equality Impact Assessments or the Public Sector Equality Duty
is not adhered to.

In general Tai Pawb views the assessment of impact as a crucial part of Public Sector Equality
Duty which should remain as a specific duty in Wales and be further promoted as a positive and

Page 13

Page 3



13.

14,

mainstream organisational tool. We also feel that the current guidance on Equality Impact
Assessments would benefit from greater focus on outcome for service users/employees etc.
rather than the process itself. This would not only help highlight the potential for positive
contribution of Equality Impact Assessments to the promotion of equality but also the potential
to deliver more effective and tailored services and the links to corporate strategies.

Devolution has resulted in different approaches being taken in relation to the requirement on
listed public bodies to carry out equality impact assessment. For example there is a requirement
on listed public bodies in Wales to carry out Equality Impact Assessments under the Welsh
specific duties however there is no such requirement on English bodies. It is important that
further clarity is provided and a stronger voice is given to the Welsh approach in Wales to ensure
it is be heard — we believe this should be the joint role of the Welsh Government and The
Equality and Human Rights Commission in Wales.

Tai Pawb has also carried out work with organisations that operate across both England and
Wales and further clarification needs to be provided in relation to expectations on these bodies
in terms of the public and specific duties when they are delivering services in Wales

The Equality and Human Rights Commission in Wales

15.

16.

Although we do not know the exact impact of recent changes to the provision of service level in
Wales, we can predict that they will have a detrimental effect on the delivery of Equality and
Human Rights Commission duties in Wales. In our view Equality and Human Rights Commission
has had a positive role in Wales especially in relation to raising awareness of equality and human
rights issues, for example through inquiries and research.

It is our view that the Equality and Human Rights Commission in Wales could and should be
taking a proactive role in Wales in particular with ensuring compliance with the Public Sector
Equality Duty (general and specific) and wider Equality Act 2010. However, in order for this to
be a viable option for the Commission, there would need to be a substantial increase in funding
for the Commission and also an expansion of staffing to meet the increased demands on their
responsibilities. This is very important especially in light of the distinctive and strong
commitment to equality and Public Sector Equality Duty from the Welsh Government and the
need for the Equality and Human Rights Commission to work closely with the Welsh
Government. An example of this is the inclusion of equality standards and expectations in the
Welsh Government Regulatory Framework for Housing Associations in Wales and in our view
this has led to the strengthening of equality agenda within the Registered Social Landlord sector
with more work being done in the sector. Since the Equality and Human Rights Commission has
a duty to work with and advise the Welsh Government, the strengthening of equality standards
within Welsh Government work programmes will inevitably lead to more work for the Equality
and Human Rights Commission. In light of the above, more power should also be given to the
National Assembly for Wales in relation to Welsh Government accountability and scrutiny,
especially with the increasing divergence between English and Welsh approaches to Public
Sector Equality Duty. This would also require strengthening the relationship between National
Assembly for Wales, Welsh Government and the Equality and Human Rights Commission
through, for example devolved funding, and devolved role and function of the Equality and

Page 14

Page4‘



Human Rights Commission and primary legislative powers granted to National Assembly for
Wales in relation to Public Sector Equality Duty.

17. It is imperative that the remit and reach of the Equality and Human Rights Commission in Wales
is strengthened. However of equal importance is to ensure the ability to have a voice that is
heard and respected within a UK national context is not unintentionally lost as a result of
developing any additional Welsh specific remit for the Equality and Human Rights Commission.

The link between poverty and Equality and the soci-economic duty.

18. There are clear links between poverty and equality. It is not our intention to provide evidence
for this in this submission as we believe that the subject has been widely covered in research.
For example, Equality and Human Rights Commission research “The anatomy of economic
inequality in Wales” and “How Fair is Wales?” provided a plethora of evidence showing the
unequal outcomes which exists for people from different groups. Some of these groups are
protected under the Equality Act 2010, others are not.

19. There are two main reasons why we believe that current legislation does not allow for the
promotion of equality and prevention of discrimination to full extent:

a.  Where groups living in poverty are protected under the Equality Act 2010, the evidence
for the link between poverty and inequality is often difficult to establish and such
thorough intersectional analysis of outcomes is rarely undertaken by listed bodies in
their data analysis for planning and monitoring service provision and service outcomes.
If a claim was to be made against a public authority, it would have to be a claim for
indirect discrimination and it would be extremely difficult to provide evidence — the links
between poverty and belonging to a protected group are often deeply entrenched and
difficult to prove although it is widely accepted that they exist. While anti-poverty
strategies often have some equality elements (e.g. focus on children, women or older
people), they often lack a more sophisticated analysis of unequal outcomes linked to
both poverty and a protected characteristic.

b. Some people living in poverty are not directly protected under the current law although
it is proven that for some groups “disadvantage begins at birth and continues through
education and employment into retirement - often carrying on into the next generation”
(Equality and Human Rights Commission, 2011) — for example single parents, people
living in social housing, children in receipt of free school meals or simply people on lower
incomes. There is clearly a need to focus on analysing the causes of such disadvantage,
alleviate it and create equal opportunities and outcomes for such groups. Through our
work (particularly when delivering equality training and talking about protected
characteristics with those attending) we have heard from tenants and housing
associations staff members about the issue and impact of people’s negative perceptions
of certain estates and the impact of the stigma this can create in terms of tenants self-
esteem and their experiences when accessing services.

Page 15

Page 5



20. The above factors are the two main reasons why we believe that Socio-Economic Duty should be
commenced in Wales and not repealed by the UK Government. Such duty would enable greater
promotion of equality for all people.

Accountability for equality and human rights legislation in Wales.

21. There are several aspects of equality legislation which Tai Pawb considers important in terms of
equality and accountability in Wales.

a) National Assembly for Wales has limited powers in relation to the Equality Act 2010 in
Wales. It cannot fully scrutinise Welsh Government’s performance on the duties or in fact
the performance of the public sector. This also limits the capacity of the Equality and
Human Rights Commission to assess the Welsh Governments and public sector’s
performance as a whole.

b) Listed public authorities in Wales are not required to report their performance on equality
duties to the Welsh Government.

c) Although the Equality and Human Rights Commission has powers to enforce Equality Act
2010 including public sector equality duties we believe that listed bodies in Wales would
benefit from more direct and regular assessment of their compliance with general and
specific equality duties, e.g. through whole sector reviews in relation to particular duties.

22.In relation to the points above we believe that full devolution of powers in relation to equality to
the National Assembly for Wales would be the best solution.

Page 16

Page 6



Agenda ltem 4

Paper 4

Communities, Equality and Local Government Committee
Inquiry into : The future of equality and human rights in Wales
Response from : Disability Wales

1. Introduction

1.1 Disability Wales/Anabledd Cymru is the national association of disabled
people’s organisations in Wales striving for the rights, equality and
independence of all disabled people. Our core role is to reflect the views of
our members to government with the aim of informing and influencing

policy.

1.2 DW is delighted to have the opportunity to submit evidence to this
important inquiry.

2. How well the specific public sector equality duties are functioning
in Wales

2.1 There is widespread recognition of the robustness of the public sector
equality duties in Wales compared with that pertaining in other nations
within the UK. Colleagues in sister organisations outside of Wales regularly
comment on this and admire the scope of the Wales specific duties
including the requirement on public bodies to involve disabled people
amongst others with protected characteristics in identifying equality
objectives and drawing up equality plans.

2.2 DW was closely involved in working with Welsh Government in
identifying its own equality objectives and developing its Strategic Equality
Plan (SEP). DW has an interest across the eight objectives outlined in the
plan however there are two key areas of work in which DW have been
closely involved and have helped to influence:

Objective 4: the disability hate crime element in ‘reducing the
incidence of all forms of violence against women, domestic abuse,
‘honour’ based violence, hate crime, bullying and elder abuse’

DW/Consultations/CELG Committee Inquiry/Equality & Human Rights/RD/13

Page 17



Objective 5: tackling barriers and supporting disabled people so that
they can live independently and exercise choice and control in their
daily lives

2.3 Disability Hate Crime

DW is a member of the Welsh Government’s Task Group on developing a
Framework for Action on Tackling Hate Crime, established to assist it with
fulfilling its equality objective. DW represents the Disability Hate Crime
Action Group Cymru which it co-founded with Safer \Wales following
partnership work with the ACPO Equality and Diversity Forum and the
organisation of the first national seminars in Wales on Disability Hate Crime
held in 2009.

2.4 Independent Living

Further to DW’s successful campaign Independent Living NOW!, WG
committed to introduce a Framework for Action on Independent Living to
deliver objective 5. DW worked co-productively with WG in engaging
disabled people and their organisations in developing the Framework and
consulting on the draft. The Framework adopted the six calls to action
outlined in DW’s Manifesto for Independent Living which reflected the
priorities identified by our members during the campaign:

1. Improved access to information, advice, independence, advocacy
and peer support services for all

2. Availability of accessible and supported housing to meet individual
requirements

3. A comprehensive range of options and genuine choice and control in
how personalised care and support is delivered

4. Improved access to person centred technology

A barrier free transport system, including all modes of transport

6. Enabling access, involvement and social, economic and cultural
inclusion for all disabled people.

o

2.5 DW believes that in relation to disabled people the WG has
demonstrated some good practice in the development of its strategic
equality objectives. However the crucial next step is achieving the actions
and outcomes outlined in the SEP and the effectiveness of monitoring and
evaluation arrangements including the continued engagement of disabled
people.

DW/Consultations/CELG Committee Inquiry/Equality & Human Rights/RD/13

Page 18



2.6 It is to be expected that Welsh Government should show leadership in
an area where it has developed the duties. DW is equally interested in the
performance of other public bodies many of which are responsible for
delivery of services at the local level. DW undertook a brief review of local
authority SEPs with the aim of comparing to what extent their objectives
overlapped with Welsh Government regarding the areas of independent
living and hate crime.

2.7 The majority of local authorities referred to action on Disability Hate
Crime due perhaps to the high profile of this issue and the impact of the
EHRC’s Report Hidden in Plain Sight, conversely none specifically
mentioned independent living. Some however included objectives on
specific issues that feature in the Framework most notably access to
information, advice and advocacy, and broader access within society.
However some issues were hardly referred to at all including accessible
housing and person centred technology. Despite the commitment to
access to information, in many cases SEPs were difficult to locate on local
authority websites and some were produced in PDF format only which are
not accessible to people who use screen readers.

2.8 For DW the lack of synergy between WG and LA SEPs stemmed from
them being developed concurrently in a short timescale. Given both
Independent Living and Disability Hate Crime are the subject of national
strategic Frameworks for Action, our expectation is that future plans will
have greater cross-over. However while DW was able to commit staff
resources to working with WG regarding its objectives, the majority of local
disabled people’s organisations operate purely on volunteer effort so
without further resources are unlikely to be able to contribute to the
development and scrutiny of local plans to the same degree.

2.9 To support the capacity of members, DW has produced a resource that
provides members with information, practical advice and case studies re
how to use the Equality Act (2010), the Public Sector Equality Duties in
Wales and the UN Convention on the Rights of Persons with Disabilities
(UNCRPD). Entitled Know your Rights! Use your Rights! Live your Rights!
and workshops using the pack will be run over the Summer of 2013.

DW/Consultations/CELG Committee Inquiry/Equality & Human Rights/RD/13

Page 19



3. The Equality and Human Rights Commission in Wales

3.1 DW has worked closely and productively with the EHRC on a number
of areas of mutual concern and interest since its inception in 2007. We
have benefited from their active support for DW campaigns such as Streets
Ahead and Independent Living Now! as well as projects such as Way to
Go: Planning for Inclusive Access. We have also participated in EHRC
events on the UNCRPD, Disability Hate Crime and Employment.
Resources such as ‘How Fair is Wales’ have also proved invaluable.

3.2 The work on Disability Hate Crime was a good example where the
EHRC’s Formal Inquiry which culminated in the report Hidden in Plain Sight
was able to build upon ground work undertaken by disability organisations
and the Police in Wales and resulted in progress such as a pilot Multi-
Agency Risk Assessment Conference on Disability Hate Crime and the WG
Framework for Action.

3.3 Recent cutbacks by UK Government have led to reduced capacity in
the Wales Office which is undoubtedly having an impact on their level of
engagement with the work of individual organisations in particular. The
loss of the EHRC Helpline is also of concern especially as the new EASS
does not have a Wales base. Nearly two-thirds of calls to the former
helpline were on disability related issues and while it is too early to judge
the effectiveness of the new arrangements, nevertheless the loss of
another advice service based in Wales is a blow.

4. The link between poverty and equality and the socio-economic duty

4.1 In recent years DW as with many of its counterparts has focussed on
the rights and equality agenda on the grounds that addressing these issues
would enable disabled people to participate fully in social, cultural and
economic life. Poverty was seen as a symptom of inequality rather than its
cause. However the extent of poverty amongst disabled people especially
in Wales which in the face of Welfare Reform and cuts in public services is
only likely to worsen means that a twin-tracked approach is vital.

4.2 For example a key driver for WG introducing the Framework for Action
on Independent Living was its scope for mitigating the effects of financial
cut backs.

DW/Consultations/CELG Committee Inquiry/Equality & Human Rights/RD/13

Page 20



4.3 DW recognises that the recent Cabinet reshuffle which brings together
poverty and equality in one ministerial portfolio provides a significant
opportunity to join up areas of work which hitherto have been dealt with
separately. One element in particular which could benefit from this focus is
around the provision of information, advice and advocacy.

5. Accountability for equality and human rights legislation in Wales

5.1 DW supports the proposal for powers in respect of equality being
further devolved. This would help avoid the situation whereby elements of
legislation to which commitments have been made in Wales such as the
socio-economic duty and the public sector equality duties could be
withdrawn or repealed by the UK Government. We reiterate the three
EHRC recommendations to the Silk Commission:

e The National Assembly should be given powers to build on equality
and human rights legislation including the Equality Act 2010 and the
Human Rights Act 1998.

e The National Assembly should be given full primary legislative
competence in relation to the Public Sector Equality Duty.

e The National Assembly should be given competence to strengthen its
relationship with the EHRC

5.2 DW also calls for the UNCRPD to be fully embraced by the National
Assembly and Welsh Government and enshrined not only in Welsh
legislation but in the way in which both institutions carry out their functions.

DW/Consultations/CELG Committee Inquiry/Equality & Human Rights/RD/13

Page 21



Agenda Iltem 5

Paper 5
Communities, Equality and Local Government Committee

Inquiry into : The future of equality and human rights in Wales

Response from : The Welsh Local Government Association (WLGA) and
NHS Centre for Equality and Human Rights (NHS CEHR)

The Welsh Local Government Association (WLGA) and NHS Centre for
Equality and Human Rights (NHS CEHR) would like to thank the Committee
for the opportunity to submit evidence to its Inquiry. Our organisations have
chosen to submit joint evidence in recognition of the fact that equality
legislation has impacted on us in similar ways, but also because equality
requires a partnership focus and we, along with other partners, are
increasingly working together to deliver it.

The consideration of Wales’ specific public sector equality duties and
associated issues is welcome, particularly in light of the concurrent UK review
of the Public Sector Equality Duty. Our evidence to the latter review
demonstrates how, taken as a whole, the PSED is being used as an effective
tool in addressing some of the prevailing public service challenges and
meeting the needs of citizens and communities. The evidence included here
provides an account of how the specific public sector equality duties are
functioning in Wales, highlighting their areas of strength in supporting the
achievement of the aims of the general duty, as well as some areas for
improvement.

How well the specific public sector equality duties are functioning in
Wales

1. In line with the general policy direction in Wales, the PSED is challenging
public authorities to become more evidence-based and outcome-focused
in their equality work. The simplification of equality legislation has helped
to secure a greater corporate focus and facilitated a stronger connection
between equality and the wider public service improvement agenda. The
specific duty to have a Strategic Equality Plan (SEP) and objectives has
been instrumental in moving this forward by bringing previously separate
strands together and encouraging discussion across departments and
services.

2. This simplification has also enabled a partnership approach, increasing
opportunities to join-up activity across sectors and improving links to
priority areas such as tackling health inequality (see Appendix, item A).
WLGA is also publishing an advice note to support local partnerships in
their efforts to embed equality in integrated planning.

3. Equality work must continue to demonstrate a focus on outcomes rather
than process and there has been good progress so far. In addition to
ensuring equality work has and can demonstrate an impact, this shift has
the advantage of improving the reputation of equality and increasing the
buy-in of staff from the front line to the chief executive.

Page 22



4. We recognise the aim of the specific duties is to establish processes that
will embed equality in day-to-day business and ensure transparency in
order to improve outcomes and accountability. Our evidence includes
examples of where the duties are achieving this.

5. However, whilst some of the specific duties are proving to be useful tools,
certain duties have less potential to improve equality outcomes. We have
therefore made reference below to those duties that require further
consideration if we are to achieve a balance between the resources we
allocate and the value we derive. One example is the prescriptive list of
employment information, the collection and publication of which has
proved to be time and resource intensive (see 3.5).

6. The points below identify areas of strength and development for each of
the Welsh specific duties;

3.1 The specific duty to publish equality objectives, Strategic
Equality Plans and annual reports
The strength of these specific duties is that they enable listed
bodies to demonstrate compliance with the general duty and
communicate their priorities and progress to the public in a
transparent manner. Listed bodies’ first SEPs were published by
April 2012 and have been followed by the first annual reports,
published by 31% March 2013. A significant amount of effort has
gone into developing this works and we believe there are excellent
examples of both SEPs and annual reports. However, it is vital that
these plans fit into the wider body of corporate and partnership
working. Collaboration is a core feature of the current policy
agenda in Wales, with increased regional and national working and
notable developments around plan and partnership rationalisation.
Therefore we would encourage a flexible attitude here and a
willingness to support joint-working across geographical or
organisational boundaries in relation to the equality duty,
recognising that some listed bodies may wish to integrate their
equality objectives, plans and reports as part of their broader
collaborative agenda.

3.2 The specific duty to engage
Engagement cuts across the duties and should be seen as an
‘enabling’ duty, supporting the development of objectives, SEPs,
impact assessments and in turn procurement. This means that
engagement is undertaken for a wider variety of purposes with an
extensive range of stakeholders. There are accounts of how this
was undertaken, with whom and how the information was used in
the SEPs and annual reports. However, engagement is not seen as
a ‘one off” exercise but an ongoing dialogue. An example of this is
the NHS 'Stakeholder Reference Group’ which currently has 29
member organisations representing diverse communities and
providing an ‘expert’ panel for the health service in Wales. In
relation to procurement, the private sector is a major stakeholder

Page 23 2



3.3

3.4

3.5

3.6

and Appendix, item E outlines an example of how Caerphilly County
Borough Council is engaging with local business. This clearly
demonstrates how the duties inter-relate, with engagement,
awareness raising and procurement illustrated in this example.

The specific duty to assess impact

As the process for assessing impact embeds and develops listed
bodies are seeing how they can have a positive impact on decision-
making (see Appendix, item D). Importantly, impact assessments
enable public authorities to demonstrate due regard and mitigate
risk. Whilst we are supportive of the duty, this is an ongoing area
of development and WLGA and CEHR are currently undertaking
work to support improvement.

The specific duties to identify, collect and publish relevant
information

This duty is helpful in ensuring there is a solid evidence base to
inform equality objectives, SEPs and impact assessments. It also
has the advantage of not prescribing what constitutes relevant
information. This enables listed bodies to focus on information
most relevant to their area and reduces the time spent collecting
data that might not be useful to them. Importantly, equality
information is part of the broader service improvement and many
organisations are developing a strategic, coordinated approach to
how they use information corporately and in partnership.

Employment information

This duty has helped to drive improvements in employment data
and analysis. However, the requirements of the duty are lengthy
and prescriptive and certain aspects are not only a challenge to
collect but are not considered to be especially useful in enabling
listed bodies to meet the duty. We would welcome further
discussions over the specifics of this duty with a view to revising
the list to @ more proportionate set of requirements. In addition,
there may be an opportunity to consider shifting the requirement
towards the development of employment objectives, rather than
the collection of data, as is already the case in relation to gender

pay.

Procurement

Commissioning is now playing a more prominent role in the delivery
of public services, making this duty particularly relevant. Ensuring
equality is embedded throughout the process can and is helping
listed bodies mitigate risk, improve efficiency and effectiveness and
add community benefits. Evidence included under Appendix, item B
shows how some listed bodies are achieving this. The WLGA is also
developing an advice note to support local government in adhering
to their legal requirements and deriving maximum benefit from

Page 24 3



their procurement in relation to equality.

7. In our response to the UK PSED Review we highlighted the fact that there
have been no judicial reviews as a result of public authorities’ in Wales
failing to meet the duty, in contrast to the situation in England.! This may
be attributable to the more comprehensive list of specific duties that
enable organisations to meet and demonstrate they are meeting the
PSED. As previously outlined, some duties are considered to be more
useful than others in this regard, particularly the duties to set equality
objectives, publish a SEP and assess impact.

The Equality and Human Rights Commission in Wales

8. The positive working relationship between the EHRC and WG has resulted
in more robust duties in Wales, demonstrating a strong commitment to
the agenda. We hope this relationship continues, in conjunction with a
coproductive approach involving wider stakeholders. This will ensure
equality requirements continue to be *fit-for purpose’ and reflect and adapt
to the broader policy agenda.

9. However, there are concerns over the scale of activity required of the
EHRC in regulating the specific duties and their capacity to meet this.
Comments from listed bodies indicate that, whilst EHRC guidance
documents have been helpful, they would value some general, high level
feedback on their SEPs and annual reports to aid them in improving future
iterations. This type of support from the EHRC is felt to be an important
addition to a more compliance-oriented, regulatory role.

10.In addition, there are also doubts over the EHRC’s capacity to fully
regulate the specific duties. However, we are unsure of the extent of
regulatory activity as we have little indication of how and where this is
being undertaken.

11.The Committee will be aware of the plans to establish a Sustainable
Development (SD) body in Wales. There are synergies between the work
undertaken by the EHRC and the proposed responsibilities of the SD body.
Therefore, any consideration of the role of the EHRC in Wales should link
in to wider SD developments.

The link between poverty and equality and the socio-economic duty

12.The socio-economic and protected characteristic components of equality
cannot be seen as separate from one another. This has been identified in
a number of SEPs, with objectives linking the protected characteristics to
priority areas such as unemployment and health inequality (see Appendix,
item F). Whilst evidence shows they are likely to inter-relate the
relationship between the two, particularly at level of policy and legislation,
is so far under-explored. A strengthening of this relationship will be vital if
we are to make measurable improvements in these seemingly separate

! R (Rahman) v Birmingham City Council (2011)
http://www.bailii.org/ew/cases/EWHC/Admin/2011/944.html

Page 25 4



but ultimately related areas of work.

13.The alignment of equality and tackling poverty under the new Minister for
Communities and Tackling Poverty presents real opportunities to make this
connection from the ‘top’ down.

Accountability for equality and human rights legislation in Wales

14.As noted by the committee, the combination of devolved and non-
devolved elements of equality legislation presents a challenge and the
potential for the specific duties to fall if the general duty were ever
repealed is cause for concern.

15.Moreover, there is a ‘disconnect’ between WG's ability to legislate on
specific duties and its limited influence over the EHRC in Wales. As
previously stated, the EHRC has limited and diminishing capacity and this
is likely to impact on its ability to fully regulate the specific duties.

16.Finally, it is important to note that accountability is not only ‘upward’ to
the EHRC but also ‘downward’ to communities. SEPs and annual reports
help to communicate priorities and progress, thereby building confidence
and improving accountability to citizens and communities. Embedding
equality considerations in scrutiny (Appendix, item C) and ensuring there
is meaningful, ongoing engagement will also be essential.

Page 26 5



Appendix — Supporting Evidence

A: Increased collaboration

North Wales Public Sector Equality Network

Equality leads in all six North Wales Local Authorities, Betsi Cadwaladr
University Health Board (BCUHB), North Wales Fire and Rescue Service,
Welsh Ambulance Service NHS Trust, National Parks Authority and North
Wales Police have shared good practice for many years. With the
introduction of the new legislation, these organisations have been working
collaboratively under the North Wales Public Sector Equality Network, to
advance the equality agenda and to tackle issues on inequality that cut across
the public sector throughout North Wales. During 2011 the network
conducted joint activities to develop a set of shared objectives which every
partner has signed up to. Each objective has an accompanying set of ‘Action
Areas’ which give definition to the six objectives and provide the basis from
which each partner has planned their contribution to the achievement of the
six objectives. Different partners have agreed to contribute to different
Action Areas and have detailed this in their Strategic Equality Plans. This
work shows how the legislation has both supplied the impetus for and
enabled partners to extend their collaborative working in order to tackle the
most pressing equality issues in North Wales. More information can be
viewed here http://www.wales.nhs.uk/sitesplus/861/page/59490

Embedding equality in procurement

Using community benefit clauses when commissioning for a
regeneration scheme in Blaenau Ffestiniog
One of the Gwynedd Council’s prime political drivers is the need to develop
and protect the local economy, and procurement is seen as a key contributor
to this aim. The council undertook a regeneration programme in partnership
with Blaenau Ymlaen, a local community group, and the Welsh Government
to deliver a significant change to the town. The council formally included
community benefit requirements as part of the tender process using a mixture
of ‘core’ and non-core’ elements. Some of the benefits achieved include;
e Pathways to Apprenticeships started for a 5 week period from a local
College
e Unemployed person appointed on an Intermediate Labour Market
Local young person with mental health conditions given work
experience
e Placement given to a local young person as part of his HND
qualification
e Young person appointed, on work experience, by main contractor over
summer period and retained by contractor post project
e A number of workshops held with schools in the area to develop an
understanding of careers within construction and to raise awareness of
Health and Safety

Page 27 6



e 2 groups from Ysgol Ardudwy visited site during installation of the slate
pillar sections as well as a school visit to learn about careers in the
construction industry

e Balfour Beatty assisted Construction Skills and Careers Wales as
construction ambassadors

e H&S presentations were given to over 250 pupils in local schools, by
Balfour Beatty staff.

Whilst considering that the core requirement in terms of community benefits
for this project was to provide 4 work experience / training opportunities,
expectations were far exceeded through the additional use of the non-core
approach.

C: Embedding equality in scrutiny

Scrutinising equality in the NHS

The NHS CEHR has produced a guide for NHS organisations in Wales, and, in
particular, Executive Directors and Independent Members/non Executive
Members. Its purpose is to help Boards take forward issues of equality with
regard to patients and the workforce, particularly in respect of complying with
the Public Sector Equality Duty (PSED) contained in the Equality Act 2010 and
specific duties in Wales. It focuses on assessing the effect of decisions on
protected groups under the Act, and how Board members can ensure both
compliance with the law and improved outcomes for patients and staff.
Publication: NHS CEHR Guide
http://www.wales.nhs.uk/sites3/page.cfm?orgid=256&pid=63612

Scrutinising equality in Neath Port Talbot

During the development of the SEP a Member Task and Finish Scrutiny
Committee Group was established to undertake a review to develop and
facilitate further understanding of equality issues within the Council. The
group also assisted in the identification, development and consideration of
equality objectives for inclusion in the SEP.

This Task and Finish Group remains active and one of its responsibilities is to
monitor and where necessary revise current objectives as well as play a role
in the development of future objectives. Monitoring of the SEP is a multi-level
process. The Policy and Resources Scrutiny Committee is responsible for
monitoring the implementation of the Strategic Equality Plan on an annual
basis a part of the executive reporting process.

In addition, Elected Members who have undertaken equality training with the
WLGA have become the Scrutiny Equality Champions and together with the
two Cabinet Equality Champions endeavour to ensure that the Council not
only talks the talk but is willing, able and well placed to walk the equalities
walk.

Page 28 7



D: Embedding equality in wider policy and practice

Welsh Health Specialised Services Committee improving services
through impact assessment

Within Wales recent work by the Welsh Health Specialised Services
Committee (WHSSC) has demonstrated the positive benefits that EIAs offer if
conducted at the outset of a policy or decision.

Within WHSSC’s Adult Mental Health portfolio, gender reassignment
accounted for less than 1% of the budget, but accounted for 45-55% of the
time spent by the Adult Mental Health team. In the main, this was time spent
dealing with enquiries about the service and handling complaints. When
WHSSC decided to revise the gender reassignment care pathway they took
the opportunity to use an EIA process to engage with the trans community so
that the views and needs of the service users could be incorporated into its
redesign.

Through the EIA process WHSSC ensured that they did more than just pay lip
service to the trans community, but actively engaged with them by setting up
a working group which contained representatives of the trans community.
Sub-groups of the working group were allocated work streams which allowed
members of the trans community and clinicians to work together. This
approach enabled WHSSC to develop a more detailed and nuanced
understanding of the trans community, and its diverse needs. It also
provided WHSSC with more accurate data on the trans community by
accessing their knowledge and expertise (e.g. Trans Helpline data).

The collaborative approach of the EIA process has resulted in benefits to both
WHSSC and the trans community. WHSSC have estimated that there has
been a cost saving of £15-20K in reduced complaints alone. WHSSC has also
seen a reputational benefit as well. Where previously they were seen very
negatively by the trans community, their steps to engage with the trans
community on the care pathway redesign has improved this. For the trans
community the EIA process was considered to be empowering. It
demonstrated that by engaging constructively with WHSSC, their concerns
would be listened to, and that they could influence the design of the service
provided to them. The EIA process was also found to have inspired members
of the trans community to become more positively engaged with the health
service (e.g. volunteering to help deliver training to NHS staff on trans
issues), and inspired them to become change agents.

The Project lead for the Gender Reassignment pathway noted that:
“The EIA process, may seem as an additional overhead at the time, and there
are some wortries by senior management that it will add pounds onto the bill.

I think it is the reverse. I think you reduce a lot of wasted effort. You
manage to develop consensus much quicker, and you can then develop action

Page 29 8



plans to address any issues that occur. It's an investment worth making in
terms of the time and effort to put this in at the earliest stage.”

Considering equality at Cabinet and Council

Many local authorities ensure that equality features as a consideration in
decision-making by including equality information in their cabinet reports as
standard. For example, Caerphilly County Borough Council introduced
‘Equalities Implications’ to all of their formal reports, attaching an EIA where
necessary. Similarly, Merthyr County Borough Council’s Executive Board took
the decision to make EIAs a mandatory accompaniment to reports for Cabinet
and Council.

E: Engagement

Positive engagement with the local business community

Caerphilly County Borough Council held an introductory Equalities Awareness
session with the local Business Forum, with the aim of developing an
agreement for the council to include them on their corporate Equalities and
Welsh Language training programme. In the longer term this will widen
access to courses and support local businesses to understand why they now
have to comply with public sector duties and benefit from having the right
processes in place to comply with the council’s procurement and
commissioning requirements.

F: The link between poverty and equality and the socio-economic
duty

There is a substantial body of research that has highlighted the links between
inequality and poverty. The EHRC’s Triennial Reviews How fair is Britain?
(EHRC, 2010), and How fair is Wales? (EHRC Wales, 2011) provide
comprehensive reviews of the available evidence, and in particular draw upon
findings from the National Equality Panel (2010) report An Anatomy of
Economic Inequality in the UK, WISERD's (2011) An Anatomy of Economic
Inequality in Wales, and the Marmot Review (2010) of health inequalities Fair
Society, Healthy Lives.

The above reports find that a person’s socio-economic status has the
strongest association with a person’s key outcomes such as educational
attainment and health outcomes. For example, the National Equality Panel
(2010)? found that within the protected characteristic strands (e.g. ethnicity),
the differences in outcomes between socio-economic classes of a sub-group
(e.g. White, Black, Indian) were greater than the differences between the
sub-groups themselves. However, they also provide strong support for the
need for the socio-economic duty as they show that a person’s life
experiences are strongly mediated by their protected characteristics.

2 National Equality Panel. (2010). An Anatomy of Economic Inequality in the UK. London:
Government Equalities Office.

Page 30 9



Analysis of data for Wales by WISERD (2011)? found that:

e Three quarters (74%) of disabled people - excluding those in education
- are not employed.

e Almost half (46%) of Pakistani and Bangladeshi people are not in
employment or full-time education. For Bangladeshi and Pakistani
women this rises to 72%.

e Men's employment is highest up to the age of 45 and then it declines.
For women employment is highest between the ages of 45-49.

e Levels of wealth are lowest among young people, lone parents, single
households and those households that include a disabled person.

e Disabled men are 3 times more likely to have no qualifications (35%)
than non-disabled men (12%). 37% of disabled women have no
qualifications compared to 13% of non-disabled women.

e Bangladeshi men are 3 times as likely (at 47%) to have no
qualifications as white men (16%), who are themselves more likely to
have no qualifications than Indian men (10%).

e Over a third of Pakistani women have no qualifications (34%). Women
of Indian, Mixed Race, and Chinese origin are more likely to have a
degree than white women. Women of Muslim faith are twice as likely
as those with Christian faith to have no qualifications.

Cardiff Council’s Strategic Equality Plan, ‘Everyone Matters’

Cardiff Council’s SEP, Everyone Matters, makes an explicit connection
between socio-economic and protected characteristic components of equality.
The document draws on the strategic needs assessment, undertaken to
inform ‘What Matters: The 10 Year Strategy of Cardiff’, considering the socio-
economic evidence in the context of the protected characteristics. Everyone
Matters describes how ‘a more sophisticated analysis of socio-economic
deprivation in the city reveals connections with the nine protected
characteristics. This helps us to understand how, by targeting our resources
towards certain issues or populations, we can have an impact on some of the
key issues for Cardiff’. The document goes on to identify objectives relating
to reducing differentials in life expectancy, educational attainment and child
poverty.

Publication: ‘Everyone Matters’
http://www.cardiff.gov.uk/content.asp?nav=2%2C2872%2C3257%2C6414

3 Wales Institute of Social and Economic Research Data and Methods (WISERD). (2011). An
Anatomy of Economic Inequality in Wales. Cardiff: Equality and Human Rights Commission
Wales.

Page 31 10



Agenda Iltem 6a

Paper to note - Paper 6

Briefing Note

Welsh Heads of Environmental Health, Housing Technical Panel.

Inquiry into Home Adaptations

Purpose of this note: To suggest an improved way of measuring performance and
service delivery.

Measuring the time taken to deliver of an adaptation across tenure as opposed to the
delivery of just focusing on DFGs.

The existing P | could be broken down and reporting could involve:

e The time taken from initial enquiry (telephone call etc) to provision of an OT
assessment.

e The time taken to provide a housing solution as many enquiries for DFGs are
resolved in different ways(re-housing, provision equipment and advice)

e The time taken to undertake an adaptation/DFG valued at under £1000,under
£3000 over £10,000.

Another focus could involve measuring the customers’ experience —standardised
questionnaires across Wales.

More focus on outcomes: A review of a percentage of adaptations delivered (10-
20%) in a year to establish if they are being used, improved health and mobility,
independence. Again it is important to have a standardised approach.

Jonathan Willis 15/5/2013.

Page 32



Paper to Note - Paper 7 Agenda Item 6b

Powys

From the office of the Executive Leader / Oddi wrth Swyddfa’r Arweinydd Gweithredol

Powys County Council
Powys County Hall
LLANDRINDOD WELLS
Powys

LD1 5LG

20" May 2013

Lesley Griffiths AM

Minister for Local Government and Government Business
Welsh Government

5" Floor

Ty Hywel

Cardiff Bay

Cardiff

CF99 1NA

Dear Minister

The Council understands that an amendment which we requested in discussions
with your officers, to the provisions of the Local Government Measure 2011 relating
to remote attendance currently being debated by the Communities. Equality and
Local Government Committee in their deliberations on the Local Government
(Democracy) (Wales) Bill have been lost at a recent meeting of the committee.

The amendment which we requested relates to the requirement for the majority of
Members attending a remote meeting to be at the main location which this Council
has argued will make the provisions for remote attendance unworkable in Powys.
This loss of the amendment is therefore of concern to this Council.

The reason for the Council’s argument in relation to the current requirement, is that
with the geographical spread of Members (34 in Montgomeryshire, 15 in Radnorshire
and 24 in Brecknockshire) and using a meeting of the full Council as an example, we
will never be able to achieve a majority being in a central location irrespective of the
main location of the meeting as those in the “remote” locations will always
outnumber those in the central location.

In addition the provisions for remote attendance was welcomed in Powys as it can
reap benefits for the Council in saving travelling costs by Members whilst providing
accessibility to meetings. In fact as you are aware Minister, the Council has recently
approved a capital allocation of £800,000 towards updating equipment at various
Council locations to take account of the need to replace the current congress
systems, but also to provide for increased webcasting and including the need to
implement remote attendance. Cont/d....

Cyngor Sir Powys County Council

The Council welcomes correspondence in Welsh or Englist

Telephone / Ffon: 01597 826369 « Fax ﬁfacs 015?3826220 http //www powys.gov.uk
ebiaeth yn y Gymraeg neu'r Saesneg



Finally, taking a longer term view of local government as a whole, if in the future a
decision is taken to restructure local government, the new areas likely to be created
will be geographically large, and will face difficulties similar to those faced by Powys
currenfly due to its size. The drive for greater joint working and potentially regional
working will in addition make the ability to attend meetings remotely more important.

As Minister for Local Government, can | ask for your support in pursuing the
approval of this amendment. | am copying this letter to the Chair of the Communities.
Equality and Local Government Committee, Christine Chapman A.M., in the hope

that the committee will take account of this Council's views in their future
deliberations on this matter.

Yours sincerely

Durd 1 f

County Councillor David R Jones
Executive Leader, Powys County Council

cc Christine Chapman A.M., Chair - Communities, Equality and Local
Government Committee

Page 34



Paper to Note - Paper 8 Agenda Item 6C
Lesley Griffiths AC / AM N / ( g??
Y Gweinidog Llywodraeth Leol a Busnes y Llywodraeth ;k':!()

Minister for Local Government and Government Business

Llywodraeth Cymru
Welsh Government

Ein cyf/Our ref: SF-LG-1866-13

Christine Chapman AM

Chair

Communities Equality and Local
Government Committee
National Assembly for Wales
Cardiff Bay

CF99 1NA 29 May 2013

Dear Christine,

| was pleased to attend the Communities, Equality and Local Government Committee
meeting on 1 May 2013. As you are aware, | agreed to provide the Committee with a note
on the following points:

e The level and use of Local Authority reserves.

e The commencement in the Local Government Measure of the section relating to
remote attendance.

e The availability of a gender audit within the salary information Local Authorities are
required to provide.

» The possibility of requiring Councillors etc. to publish their declarations and interests
online.

e Update on the submission to the Silk Commission requesting all matters regarding
Local Government elections to be devolved, with the exception of registration and
franchise and the reasoning behind this.

e The possible issues surrounding the structure of voting systems in Local Government
if Local Governments were re-organised and election powers were not devolved.

e The current funding arrangements of SARC’s and IDVA’s (Home Office and Welsh
Government) and future plans.

* Update on the issues raised and discussed at the Minister's meeting with the
Probation Service.

 What work has been done regarding the issue of stalking and how the Welsh
Government has engaged with the UK Government's stalking agenda.

* The scrutiny arrangements in place for the four regional education consortia across
Wales.

e Further information on the Public Service Leadership Group.

Bae Caerdydd « Cardiff Bay English Enquiry Line 0845 010 3300
Caerdydd « Cardiff Llinell Ymholiadau Cymraeg 0845 010 4400
CF99 1NA Correspondence. lesley. Griffiths@wales. gsi.gov.uk

Wedi’i argraffu ar bapur wedi’i ailgylchu ( 1&03)9 e3 Printed on 100% recycled paper

5



Please find this information enclosed at Annex 1.

| will write to you again during the autumn on how Local Authorities are using the additional
£1.25 million funding allocated to provide support for broadcasting, remote attendance and
community council websites. | will also send you an update in due course on the timetable
for introducing new regulations for the council tax reduction schemes and, when available, |
will provide the Committee with the evaluation report of the last round of outcome
agreements and a report on how the Anti-Human Trafficking Leadership Group’s Delivery
Plan has been taken forward.

Lesley Griffiths AC / AM
Y Gweinidog Llywodraeth Leol a Busnes y Llywodraeth
Minister for Local Government and Government Business

Page 36



ANNEX 1

Update from the Minister for Local Government and Government Business on
points raised at the Communities, Equalities and Local Government
Committee held on 1 May 2013

Each Local Authonty has the freedom and responsnblhty to set Ievels of reserves
appropriate to its own particular circumstances. There are no set rules on the
minimum or maximum reserves an Authority should hold, and there are a host of
reasons why Local Authorities need to manage their reserves carefully. For
example, the need to set aside provisions for equal pay liabilities and the 21%
Century Schools Programme were highlighted in a recent Wales Audit Office study
as two particular areas where Authorities must set funding aside. The Report also
highlighted there is less clarity around some of the other areas where provisions are
set aside.

The most recent data shows some wide variation in the levels of reserves held with
some authorities holding general reserves, which are not earmarked for any specific
purpose, equivalent to 4.4% of their expenditure whilst others’ amount to 0.2% of
spend. In these circumstances, it is reasonable to want to understand better the
position on reserves.

The future funding outlook is extremely challenging and Local Authorities are under
no illusion of the need to look at all the options available to them to manage the
pressures going forward and to make the best use of their reserves to drive forward
the transformation of services which is needed to place public services on a
sustainable basis for the longer term.

| have asked each Local Authority to provide me with further detail of its strategy for
holding and utilising reserves.

The commencement in the Local Government Measure of the section relating

to remote attendance - . o

Draft guidance on remote attendance is due to be pubhshed very shortly for a 12
week consultation. My intention is to commence section 4 of the Local Government
(Wales) Measure in time for the final guidance to be published. Each Principal
Council will then need to consider amending their Standing Orders, having regard to
the guidance, outlining the circumstances in which remote attendance can operate in
their Authority. | would want all Principal Councils to have arrangements in place no
later than their 2014 Annual Meetings. In the meantime, they can make use of the
advance funding provided to pilot the system.

The availability of a gender audit the salal‘i?finfififrlﬁfat"
Authorities are required to provide . o
Relevant Authorities are required by section 38(1) of the Locallsm Act 2011 to
prepare and publish each year a pay policy statement. This statement must
articulate the Authority’s policies towards a range of issues relating to the pay of its

| workforce, particularly its senior staff (or ‘chief officers’) and its lowest paid

that Local -

Page 37



employees. The statutory guidance does not require the Statement to include a
breakdown by gender. The guidance does allow Authorities to include any additional
information relating to their policies on pay which they consider is appropriate.

interests onlir -
The code of conduct requires members with a personal interest (as defined by the
code) must disclose the interest when attending a meeting at which the business to
which the interest relates is to be considered. The disclosure must be made either
before or at the commencement of that consideration or when the interest becomes
apparent. To facilitate the smooth conduct of meetings, some (if not all) Authorities
request the disclosure of interests at the beginning of the meeting. The code also
requires a member to provide written confirmation of an interest on the first occasion
on which it is disclosed, so there is no ambiguity over the nature of the interest
disclosed.

h r declarations and

This issue was considered carefully when the model code of conduct was last
reviewed. Whilst alternative approaches were considered, the balance of opinion
favoured disclosure on each occasion the related business is to be considered. This
provides complete transparency for persons observing proceedings or reviewing
minutes at a later date. It also removes any room for doubt over whether a
disclosure has been made in the event of a subsequent allegation of a breach of the
code.

Update on the submission to the Silk Commission requesting that all matters

regardlng Local Government electlons to be devolved wnth?the exceptlon of

In our submission to the Sllk Comm:ssmn we are seekmg competence for the
Assembly in relation to the administration of Assembly and local elections. If
successful, this would give the Assembly full competence over the conduct of local
elections, including the appointment and funding of Returning Officers, as well as the
voting system. It would not, however, include the franchise and registration. This is
because, in our view, it would not be appropriate for the rules relating to the
franchise and registration processes to differ between Wales and the rest of the UK.
The rules on citizens' entitlement to vote ought to be common across the Union.

were not devolved . -

Should there be changes to the number and area of Local Authonttes in Wa[es the
same system of voting would automatically apply to these new Authorities as to the
previous. There is no necessary link between the two issues. The power for the
elections to be called for new Authorities lies within competence but not the way they
are conducted.

The current funding arrangements o

Welsh Government) and future plans

SARCS

For the period 2010/11 - 2013/14, we via Domestic Abuse Services Grant and
DHSSC budget) have provided the following funding for SARCS:

Page 38



2010/11 - £170,601

201112 - £277,998

2012/13 - £230,138

2013/14 - £73,000 (Domestic Abuse Services Grant only - DHSSC funding to
be determined)

The Home Office funded the set up costs of each SARC (£70,000) and provided
money from various funding streams (via Home Office Crime Team) up to 2010/11.
Five Welsh SARCs were successful in their bids for Home Office Independent
Sexual Violence Adviser funds of up to £20,000 per annum from 2011/12 - 2014/15.

IDVAS

We have provided £10,000 to each Community Safety Partnership (CSP) for the
Independent Domestic Violence Adviser service in their areas from 2010/11 to
2012/13. In 2013/14, we have allocated £37,500 to each CSP for both the Domestic
Abuse Co-ordinator and IDVA roles - it will be a local decision as to how much is
allocated to each post/service. The funding was not awarded as a response to
Home Office cuts, but in recognition of the vital service IDVAs provide to high risk
victims of domestic abuse. Sustainable funding for IDVAs was highlighted in the
Communities and Culture report.

18 organisations in Wales successfully applied for 4 year Home Office IDVA funding
2011/12 to 2014/15 - they were awarded either £10,000 or £20,000 per annum. The
current funding is for the spending review period (ending 2015) and no decisions
have been made beyond that point.

Four organisations in Wales successfully applied for three-year Ministry of Justice
funding for court based IDVAs (2011 - 2014). The level of awards varied between
£67,382 to £138,719 (£419,875 was allocated to Wales in total).

We have also recently provided funding (approximately £80,000) for accredited IDVA
training courses in Wales — this has provided an opportunity for 36 individuals from
across the public and voluntary sectors in Wales, helping ultimately to improve the
standard of services for victims of domestic abuse.

Future Plans

We have recently commissioned an independent review of Violence Against Women,
Domestic Abuse and Sexual Violence Service provision to ensure the strategic
direction and approach to funding in this area is grounded in a sound understanding
of the current landscape of provision in this field. The review will help inform the way
funding allocations from the VAWDA team can achieve maximum benefit.

The review will not evaluate specific projects, rather it aims to:

* Assess the existing evidence base underpinning types of service provision in
this field, in order to examine their effectiveness, both in terms of outcomes and
value for money.

 Map current service provision in Wales.

o Estimate the prevalence of the different forms of Violence against Women,

Page 39




Domestic Abuse and Sexual Violence and identify the associated need for
services.

e Make recommendations to inform my VAWDA Team's strategic approach to
funding.

In parallel, our multi agency National SARCs Planning Group has been considering
the sustainability of SARC services, value for money, the requirements of service
users and compatibility with the sexual abuse service specifications designed by
Public Health Wales (PHW). The Group agreed earlier in the year to conduct a
review of SARC provision across Wales. Gwent Police, on behalf of the Group, are
leading this work.

The review will examine the extent to which SARCs fulfil the requirements of the
PHW service specifications, victims' needs and any unmet gaps in provision. [t will
also examine the interdependencies between SARCs and other services, such as
substance misuse. The review is on-going and will conclude in the summer of 2013.
The findings will help inform future funding and planning decisions by the NHS, the
police and ourselves.

There will be read across between the two reviews.

Update on

Probatio

At the meetmg on 1 May. Sarah Payne Chief Executlve Wales Probatlon provided
me with an overview of the remit of Wales Probation. The meeting also included
discussions on how we and Wales Probation could continue to work together
effectively for the benefit of both victims and offenders, the UK Government's
Transforming Rehabilitation agenda and the potential of a prison in North Wales.

With regard to the our legislative Programme, Wales Probation have developed
increasingly strong relationships with us and responded to a number of
consultations, including on the Social Service and Well-being (Wales) Bill. Wales.

Children dying in secure accommodation

The Youth Justice Board oversees the youth justice system in England and Wales
and works to prevent offending and reoffending by children and young people and
ensures custody for them is safe, secure, and addresses the causes of their
offending behaviour.

My officials work closely with the Youth Justice Board to ensure adequate, safe
provision is made for Welsh young people who offend.

What work has been done regarding the issue of stalking and how the Welsh
Government has engaged with the UK Government’s stalking agenda
On 25 November 2012, two specific criminal offences of "stalking" and "stalking
involving fear of violence or alarm or distress" came into force in England and Wales,
along with additional related police search powers. The new offences have been
added to the Protection from Harassment Act 1997 and will provide extra protection
for victims, highlight the serious impact stalking can have on their lives and help

Page 40



bring more perpetrators to justice.

The DASH (DA, stalking and HBV) risk identification checklist is used by Domestic
Abuse practitioners in Wales to identify high risk of harm and referrals to MARAC
(Multi Agency Risk Assessment Conference).

NUS Wales are assisting us with their publicity campaigns in 2013/14 and plan to
produce videos for students aligned with the R2BS strategy, one of which will be
specifically on stalking.

My officials have engaged with counterparts in the Home Office on this agenda and
another series of meetings are planned for June to discuss this and other areas of
development including forced marriage.

r regional education consortia

ablished their governance arrangements in accordance with the
local need, political agreement and commitment.

An independent review of the consortia and their “readiness to deliver’ was
undertaken last autumn. A written statement and the report were published by the
Minister for Education and Skills on 16 April. As a result of the review each
consortium is required to produce an action plan, confirming the steps they are
taking to address their priorities and progress the work required. Officials in DfES
regularly meet with consortia lead directors, ADEW and the WLGA. Officials will
assess the consortia action plans once completed (due June). (The evidence and
findings from this review were also considered as part of Robert Hill's review of
education services in Wales.)

Consortia plans for the use of the Welsh Government Schools Effectiveness Grant
and Pupil Deprivation Grant are assessed and approved by officials, and
subsequently monitored. Regional stocktakes are undertaken by the Schools
Standards Division with directors of education and heads of school improvement.
The stocktakes cover Welsh Government education priorities and provide an
evidence base to assess the progress being made by consortia working as well as
the areas for development.

The Public Service Ldership Group (PSLG) has been established to prove
national leadership for public service reform and collaboration and to drive the pace
of improvement in public services of Wales.

| chair the Group, and its key responsibilities are:

» ensuring coherence in the implementation of overall public service reform
agenda in Wales, including oversight of the implementation of the “Compact
for Change” and building coherence with the reforms in education, social
services, health and other areas;

e sponsorship and mandating of national action to improve the effectiveness
and efficiency of public services; and

Page 41



e the development of effective regional leadership for collaboration, building on
existing regional leadership structures and the Welsh Government'’s
geographical footprint for regional collaboration.

Four national work programmes, each led by a senior public service leader, help
drive forward this agenda:

« Effective Services for Vulnerable Groups which is developing and
encouraging adoption of a number of new approaches for providing more
integrated and preventative services for our most vulnerable people;

« Asset Management which is looking to make more efficient and effective use
of the multi-billion pound public service estate;

e Procurement which aims to transform the way in which public services procure
and commission goods and services from its £4b annual spend; and

e Organisational Development and Simpson Implementation has led on
implementation of the Compact for Change commitments and is promoting the
application of lean/systems thinking across the public service.

These programmes are complemented by a focus on establishing strong leadership
for collaboration at a regional level. The basis for this is our footprint for regional
collaboration and coherence, which sets out six specific areas: North Wales; Mid &
West Wales; Gwent; Cardiff & Vale; Cwm Taf, and Western Bay. The regional
collaboration leaders have a key role, alongside the national Organisational
Development and Simpson Implementation work programme, to drive delivery of the
Compact for Change at a regional level.

Key partners in the public service reform agenda — Trade Unions, the Third Sector,
Wales Audit Office, Welsh Local Government Association and the Society of Local
Authority Chief Executives, also contribute through membership of the PSLG. A
small number of senior Welsh Government officials with a direct interest in areas of
the reform agenda also attend. The full membership and an organogram is provided
below.

| will take issues identified by the PSLG to the Partnership Council for Wales (and its
sub-group, the Reform Delivery Group). This provides the members of the PCfW and
the RDG with the opportunity to ensure on-going delivery through the PSLG and
through individual and collective action by Local Government and other services
meets the needs and aspirations of people in their own areas and of Wales.

The PSLG is supported by a Measurement Group which leads the development of a
measurement framework to help demonstrate and report progress. The
measurement framework focuses on the four national programmes under the PSLG.

Page 42




for Local Government and

" Lesley Grifiths AM

Public Service Leadership Group: Membership

Government Business (Chair)
Director General, Local Government June Milligan
and Communities

Director General, Education and Skills

Owen Evans

Director General, Health and Social
Services

David Sissling

Director General, Strategic Planning,
Finance and Performance

Organisational Delopment and
Simpson Implementation

Michael Hearty

Asset Management

Helen Paterson (Wrexham County
Borough Council)

Procurement

Jon House (Cardiff Council)

Effective Services for Vulnerable
Groups

‘North Wales Region

Andrew Goodall (Aneurin Bevan Health
Board)

|
P YA EIC S S R S T T
met (Denbighshire
County Council)

Mid and West Wales Region

Mark James (Carmarthenshire County
Council)

Western Bay Region

Steve Phillips (Neath Port Talbot County
Borough Council)

Gwent Region

Paul Matthews (Monmouthshire County
Council)

Cardiff and Vale Region

Sian Davies (Vale of Glamorgan Council)

Cwm Taf Region

WLGA, Chief Executive

Peter Vaughan (South Wales Police)

e 5

Steve Thomas

SOLACE Wales, Chair

Jeremy Patterson

WCVA, Chief Executive

Graham Benfield

General Secretary Wales TUC
(Observer)

Martin Mansfield

Auditor General for Wales (Observer)

Huw Vaughan Thomas

Page 43




ZH9E1OM
PJeOg JUSWISA0IALL| UOKBIDOSSY,

SN1B)S JaAIBSQ0
JUSLULLIBAOK) [B20T USIEM
o1 yun alen Aeg
; jel wmd B t"_H_Pmu USDISIAN IS9M ® PIN YHON
& ueybnep saineq sdijjiyd sawef IPWYsiN
19 uers ano1s Hew ) \pewwedow/  jpuno 30
. uoneuojuyl Ja1yd
H 01 yur]

uol1el0geR||0d JO siapea| |euoibay .

uoneossy
{ JuBWIUIBAGY |BI0T YS[B
SeWwoYy | 3A83S

uonejuawajduwy 1
ey safem

uosduwis / juswdojaaaqg :
|euonesiuebiQ
DVIOS Mens yoef
uosiayed Awaiaf

% _ sdnouo ajqelau|np
...i_ﬁ,q ; myc_:_o> 10} SDINIDS DANIDLI o
104 | _u: nod mm_.up; Hinans ahaiy &
pjelusg weyei R
<
Sa|BAN 104 044
|e43uan JOHPNY JUsWaINd0l1d N
ssewoy | asnoy uor ®
ueybnep mny o
&
NL s3[eM 1 -
10} A1e18196 [RIDUID Juswabeue|y 18ssy 2
«PIBUsUBI UnIep uosisied usjaH
- S Ayreay [peydi 21eyD dnolo JUaWBINSeaN
1USWIUIBAOE) [BDOT 404 JBISIUIN
| Buylssis pined :JsSH 104 5
F uebijin sunr :397 4o} 5a
sueA3 UaMQ :S34d 10} 5a
sa|e/ 404 |1DUNo) diysiaulied “JUSWILIBA0D US[3AA WO 3DUBPUSNIE U|

dnouo diysiopea 9dIAIaS dljgnd

Page 44



	Agenda
	Private Pre-meeting  - 09.00 - 09.15 - Private Paper 1
	2 Inquiry into the future of equality and human rights in Wales - evidence session 4
	3 Inquiry into the future of equality and human rights in Wales - evidence session 5
	4 Inquiry into the future of equality and human rights in Wales - evidence session 6
	5 Inquiry into the future of equality and human rights in Wales
	6a Correspondence from the Welsh Heads of Environmental Health, Housing Technical Panel following the meeting on 27 February
	6b Letter from Powys County Council
	6c Correspondence from the Minister for Local Government and Government Business following the meeting on 1 May

